Consolidated Balance Sheet

HAEEERER

As at 31 December

w+ZH=+—H
2021 2020
B T E
Note US$’000 Us$’000
B 5 FET FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets SERBBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BEREE 6 158,339 164,595
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 7 4,841 4,914
Intangible assets BWEE 8 2,100 2,096
Long-term prepayments REATANTRIB 13 2,718 3,711
Investment in an associate R—EBEREZ
KBE 10 4,702 4,903
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 172,700 180,219
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =78 12 101,648 91,665
Trade receivables FEWRE 5 BEFX 13 32,164 30,298
Prepayments and other receivables A RIE &
HhFEURRIA 13 11,449 11,337
Amounts due from related parties EWAREALTHIE  32(d) 1,442 862
Structured bank deposits EHERITER 14 2,533 7,982
Short-term bank deposits and FEHRIRITIF A R IR R
pledged bank deposits IRITEM 14 1,075 21,817
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 14 66,136 42,359
Total current assets MEBEEEE 216,447 206,320
Total assets BEHEE 389,147 386,539
EQUITY W
Equity attributable to owners of EATEEA
the Company it
Share capital [N 15 15,228 15,228
Reserves (BN 16 286,561 285,832
301,789 301,060
Non-controlling interest IR R = 228 210
Total equity R AR EE 302,017 301,270
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

AL =+
eEESE
As at 31 December
®+=ZA=+—H
2021 2020
% T
Note uss$’000 Us$'000
IE F=E7x FE=r
LIABILITIES ==}
Non-current liabilities ETRHER
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 8,647 13,986
Lease liabilities HEa®E 7 2,650 2,818
Deferred income tax liabilities IRIEFFISIREE 19 1,665 2,134
Retirement benefit obligations BAENET 27 1,505 1,460
Total non-current liabilities JERENBRETE 14,467 20,398
Current liabilities G B=RE
Trade payables FE1T B 5 BREX 17 17,510 6,963
Accruals and other payables FEStE A&
HhfE (4 7018 17 21,316 20,665
Amounts due to related parties EERBEALHRE  32(d) 517 1,358
Bank borrowings RITEE 18 31,661 32,373
Lease liabilities HEAa®RE 7 369 199
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIEM B & 1,290 3,313
Total current liabilities Pt =R Rk 72,663 64,871
Total liabilities BEEE 87,130 85,269
Total equity and liabilities Hm ke AR 389,147 386,539
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction M EEBGBREERMBRMZE— 4B

with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 116 to 209 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2022 and were

signed on its behalf.

Yang. Tou-Hsiung
EEEY S
Director

BEFE

Yang, Kun-Hsiang

iR
Director

EZE
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Consolidated Income Statement

=] L
?mé”&ﬁﬁ?‘%
Year ended 31 December
HE+=B=+—HILEE
2021 2020
—E—F —ECEF
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
B 5 F%E7T FE7T
Revenue W &= 5 382,361 360,741
Cost of sales tHE A 21 (321,988) (288,185)
Gross profit EF 60,373 72,556
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHERX 21 (23,121) (25,173)
Administrative expenses TEFAX 21 (23,905) (21,638)
Other gains/(losses) — net Hilgzm,~ (B518)
— BB 20 1,635 (2,866)
Operating profit 4R i F| 14,982 22,879
Finance income AU 569 728
Finance costs Bz (336) (473)
Finance income — net MW A — B 22 233 255
Share of post-tax loss of an associate FE(L—RHs = A T
EROTREY S ] 10 (201) (1,117)
Profit before income tax PREF1ERAET 15,014 22,017
Income tax expense TSR % 23 (3,982) (5,340)
Profit for the year TEEREF 11,032 16,677
Profit attributable to: UT&SELET :
Owners of the Company TATEBA 11,014 16,650
Non-controlling interest JEITE R R 18 27
11,032 16,677
Earnings per share for profit ERAFEBANELSE
attributable to the owners of REH T SRER
the Company during the year (A SRBEWSIR)
(expressed in US cents per share)
Basic earnings per share SRERZF 25 0.72 1.09
Diluted earnings per share SRBEEHN 25 0.72 1.09

The above consolidated income statement should be read in _Ei4FE WS REEFARMNEE—HRIE-
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mezEimR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-H=1+—HLEE
2021 2020
% T
Us$000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Profit for the year EEEGHF 11,032 16,677
Other comprehensive income: HthZ2mEEA :
Item that may be reclassified to BB EEm 2 EH
profit or loss
Currency translation differences EERERR 907 3,102
Other comprehensive income for TEERREEMEEKA
the year, net of tax 907 3,102
Total comprehensive income for TEEZERALERE
the year 11,939 19,779
Total comprehensive income for UTEFELESEE
the year attributable to: EERALEE:
— Owners of the Company —ERREHEBEA 11,921 19,752
— Non-controlling interest — IR 18 27
Total comprehensive income EEEZ@MKALLE
for the year 11,939 19,779

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should — E#i4z&

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Bl

[ Uy % R I B AR BRI B — O
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HARmEHR

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARBE AR
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Merger  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
Kk  KOEE ESHE afiHE  iEHRE  RYRA oy EEREE  EDLE
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
T£x T£x T£x FEn FEn FEn FEn FEn TZn
Balance at 1 January 2020 RIZZEE
—A—BZ&## 15,228 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137332 287,514 23 287,727
Comprehensive income 2EHRA
Profit for the year REE & - - - - - 16,650 16,650 27 16,677
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKA
Currency translation differences EREE - - 3,102 - - - 3,102 - 3,102
Total comprehensive income 2EBALE - - 3,102 - - 16,650 19,752 27 19,779
Total transactions with owners BEEAZBRSE
Dividends (Note 24) RS (fisk24) - - - - - (6,206) (6,206) - (6,206)
Dividend payable to non-controlling ~ FEft—FIBARZ
interest of a subsidiary FERERZRE - - - - - - - (30) (30)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZE-ZE
+ZR=+-B2&H 15,228 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 301,060 210 301,270
Balance at 1 January 2021 RIEZ-F
—A—-Bz&8 15,228 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 301,060 210 301,270
Comprehensive income 2EHBA
Profit for the year KEE T - - - - - 11,014 11,014 18 11,032
Other comprehensive income HitI2ERA
Currency translation differences ERER - - 907 - - - 907 - 907
Total comprehensive income SERALE - - 907 - - 11,014 11,921 18 11,939
Total transactions with owners ARFAZERFE
Dividends (Note 24) BE (z24) - - - - - (11,19) (11,192 - (11,192)
Reallocation of statutory reserve BNARAEHE - - - - 46 (46) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIEZ-F
+ZA=T-HZ2%&# 15,228 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 301,789 228 302,017

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘7|_ =9 Eﬁﬁlﬂlii

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEHEE

2021 2020
Note US$'000 US$ 000
M 5 FE=7T FEmT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBEEZ
RERE
Cash generated from operations EBWELEZRSE 29(a) 31,846 50,037
Interest paid [SANEIRS (469) (763)
Income taxes paid [=ENIHIEEY ) (6.505) (3,632)
Net cash generated from REERES Y
operating activities R 35 24,872 45,642
Cash flows from investing activities KEEHEEZ
RERE
Purchases of property, EBEME -BEXK
plant and equipment & 1E (11,393) (35,647)
Proceeds from disposal of HEVE BEXK
property, plant and equipment REZFERIE 29(a) 77 8
Purchases of intangible assets BEETEE 8 (17) (76)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank REERITER K
deposits and pledged bank deposits E?Rﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬂk
L, (3800 20,742 (5,837)
Decrease/(increase) in structured bank % $§ HIRITER
deposits R (HEn) 5,455 (5,208)
Proceeds from return on PN E EB M IRITIER
structured bank deposits [ElI$R Z FR1S ™18 145 155
Interest received BUF 2 569 728
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREFTHEE FIR) 2
investing activities R 35 15,578 (45,877)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEBEEZ
RERE
Dividends paid EftBRE 24 (11,192) (6,206)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMISNIA 73,424 72,536
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (79.487) (66,299)
Principal elements of lease payment HEMRZEAEID (375) (114)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBMAZ
REFER (17.630) (83)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERREEEY
cash equivalents i Geol) #58 22,820 (318)
Cash and cash equivalents REVNZRER
at beginning of year REEEY 14 42,359 41,127
Exchange gains on cash and REMREEEMZ
cash equivalents BE 52 K 75 957 1,550
Cash and cash equivalents REXRZRER
at end of year REEEY 14 66,136 42,359

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in E#i4E&IRE R ERIEERE BN — 563
conjunction with the accompanying notes. =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

GENERAL INFORMATION

Vedan International (Holdings) Limited ("the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacture and sale of fermentation-based food additives,
biochemical products and cassava starch-based industrial
products including modified starch, glucose syrup, Monosodium
Glutamate ("MSG"), soda, glutamic acid (“GA") and others.
The products are sold to food distributors, international trading
companies, and manufacturers of food, paper, textiles, and
chemical products in Vietnam, other ASEAN member countries,
the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), Japan, Taiwan, and
several European countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands. The address of its registered office is P.O. Box
10008, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand Cayman KY1-
1001, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars ("US$°000"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are
for the group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the structured bank deposits which
are measured at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

N

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(@) Amendments to standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments
to standards which are mandatory for the Company
for the first time for the financial year beginning on
1 January 2021:

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, Interest rate benchmark
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 reform — Phase 2
and HKFRS 16

(Amendments)
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-related rent
(Amendments) concessions

The adoption of the above amendments to
standards did not have any material impact on the
current period or any prior periods.

GREERIBETHREE (B

REEE (8

KEEBRMZ ZER ZEFT A

AEER B —F—F—
BB 14 2 TR B R R
W T &R R AR M2 E
RUZfERTHS :

EBgHER FIEREEY
FIGH BB BE-FIME
MEREE B
YL A
BHBRE
ZRISE75
EEMER
HEERIER
K& B
RELERSE
165% (&3]
)
EBMBRE IuhmXig
#A)%E165% FHESESR
(BT %)

PRy £ EE B 2 B FT AN 3
¥ 7 B ) B A 17 o A B R &
BERERTE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) The following new standards, amendments to
standards, accounting guideline and practice
statement (together refers as “Amendments”) have
been issued, but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2021 and have not
been early adopted.

2

RREERTIBEHTHREE (B

2.1

RMEE (B

(b)

UTAHABERER T Z—
F-B—HHBRZHMBEE
1R E R TRRIRATER AN 2 F
RN HER) ZEFTEA - g5tia
SIRAEHZER (i85 BT
) °

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or

after
RTINS o oAt 35
ZEEHRBEN
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19-related rent concessions 1 April 2021
beyond 2021
BERMBHREEDNE 165 —E—FENMmEMm XA —_E_—H#MA—H

(CEp:
Annual Improvements Project
(Amendments)

FENEER (BT X)

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and
HKAS 37 (Amendments)

SRV ERESENE3IR
ERGTENE 16K
ERGTENEITR
(CHEN)

AG 5 (Revised)

B5HE51555% (18514%)
HKAS 1 (Amendments)

SR ERNFH 15 (BeTE)

HKFRS 17

SRUBREENE 7R

HKFRS 17 (Amendments)

ERUVBREENE 7R
(CHEN)
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HeEmR
Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2018 - 2020
BERMBREEN _ZF—-N\FE
SRR FENE

Narrow-scope amendments

INEEEERT

Revised accounting guideline 5
merger accounting for common
control combinations

EETE51E55 (BFT4) HREZEH & H
aHEgE

Classification of liabilities as
current or non-current

mENHIERBIBEDLE

Insurance contracts

REBEEH

Amendments to HKFRS 17

SBMBREERNFE 179 (BFTA)

1 January 2022
B2 _F#—H—H
1 January 2022

“E-"F—HF—H

1 January 2022

—E_"F#—HF—H

1 January 2023

—®-=%#—F—H
1 January 2023
—E-=#—5—H
1 January 2023
—F-=%#—5—H



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

GREERIBETHREE (B

RREE (8

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1

(b)

The following new standards, amendments to
standards, accounting guideline and practice
statement (together refers as “Amendments”) have
been issued, but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2021 and have not
been early adopted. (continued)

(b)

UTFREEMER-ZT=—
F-A—HRAKZYREE
HARAER  TREBIR AT R 2 B
FEQ N ERZEFT A BEHE
IR FEER (RBA MER]
7)) o ()

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or
after
RTFBEAxZEFR
ZEERREHR

HK Int 5 (2020)

EBRERR (CEZH)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2
(Amendments)
ERGHENE IR
ERAMEREEL
EEZER)FE258 (1BETA)
HKAS 8 (Amendments)
B GHERFESS (BeT4)
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

EARGHENEI12R
(CHEN)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

ERMBEREERF105R K
EAYTERFE285R
(B5T7)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
presentation of financial statements —
classification by the Borrower of a term
loan that contains a repayment on
demand clause (HK Int 5 (2020))

BERARBESR CEISH) MBHRRZ
2 - EEAHBEREREEMKXZ
BHRERz 9
(BERESSH® (CE2EH))

Disclosure of accounting policies

TR HRIKE

Definition of accounting estimates

FathstEE

Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single
transaction

REBE—XSNEEKEBEZHERHR
IEIERRIE

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture

REEHHME AN AEEEZHNE
ELEIFE

1 January 2023

_Z”_=%—F—H

1 January 2023

“Z-=F—F—H

1 January 2023
_E”_=F—F—H
1 January 2023

“TZ=%—-RB—H

To be determined

HEE

The directors of the Company have assessed the
financial impact on the Group of the adoption of
the above Amendments. There are no Amendments
that are not yet effective and that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Group
in the future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions. The Group intends to adopt the
Amendments when they become effective.

TRABEFENMERM LA
BT HAERMZ B E-
8 R £ R TR HR A IS R 2R
BEHEBAERNURAR
RERRBEMERTEZE
S17s o AE BN EHIERT A
& R LR A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

(a)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

2

GREERIBETHREE (B

2.2 MBRE @

2.2.1
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EHEH (8

Wit B8 48 B A 4 1E B AE By
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combinations (continued)
Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries
have been adjusted to conform with the
Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their
capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate (Note 2.3), or financial
asset (Note 2.9). In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUEBERTIEFHHRME (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 2.2 KEBRATE (@)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements of the Company 222 KRB HTHFERE
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at KB AT ZIRERK AR
cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect BWEIR RAEEHRAE
changes in consideration arising from contingent URBAFAKCEETIME

2.3

consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s
net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’'s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of post-tax loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial
information of associate has been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

GREERIBETHREE (B

(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation 25 SMEBH]E

(a)  Functional and presentation currency (a) THEERZ#HEM
Items included in the financial statements of each AEBESBERBZMBRRM
of the Group’s entities are measured using the BIEZEE HERZIERBK
currency of the primary economic environment EMEZIERBRIEZEHE
in which the entity operates (“the functional (THEE B8 HE-GREH
currency”). The consolidated financial statements BHRRUXRBZINAEER
are presented in US$, which is the Company's REEBEZE2HREBETE
functional and the Group's presentation currency. Gl

(b)  Transactions and balances (b) XZRAZER

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except when deferred in equity
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘other
gains/(losses) — net’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except for construction-
in-progress, is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, as follows:

— Properties 15-50 years
- Plant and machinery 10-20 years
— Motor vehicles 5-8 years
— Office equipment 5-8 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within 'other gains/(losses) — net’, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction-in-progress, comprising capital expenditure
on buildings and plant where the construction work has
not been completed, is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction-in-progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HUNEBERFECTHBEME (B)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets 27 BWEE
(a)  Gooadwill (a BE

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units ("CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
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and is not subsequently reversed. HeRrg#EBE -

(b)  Trademarks and license (b) EIERER
Separately acquired trademarks and the license, BERERERFERAFHZEIL
which have finite useful lives, are carried at cost W B8 2 7 AR T b BR 32 B AR

less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of trademarks and

St BRI EBIEANK &
WILFMBEMASE RS
BRBEBEANRBRERNEE

license over their estimated useful lives of 6 to 10 +EGEH A FERFERRET
years. pal v
(c)  Computer software (c EBASEH

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and

BANBHERGERRER
BRERAZEERMGFSIE

bring to use the specific software. These costs are MR AERC - BRAKSIZE
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5 TRl R AR R 8 o

years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUEBERFETHBEHRE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets 2.8 JEMBEEZRE

2.9

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Financial assets
2.9.1 Classification

2.9

mEREAEAFHZEE (WH
&) BAME BASFATME
BEAREMHHBEABREBERK
HEFEFEKRER  AABRKE
HARHZ BEFHBENG R
EEEDZEERAEBHHETI
Bl ER 2 £ RRFERD - AT WK B AR R ¥5
BEZATEHRLERERERE
EFHNRSE BTGB STREM
S EERSRBUIHINRER
B HRNREEM 2HMEKFES
B-HRBEZEMBEE TEE
BE) > RERE AN ERED
AT F U ET

MBERE
2.9.1 24

The Group classifies its financial assets in the TEBBHEMBEEST AN
following measurement categories: TEEHER

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value through profit or loss, and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

They are included in current assets, except for
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
comprise trade and other receivables (Note 2.12),
amounts due from related parties, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents (Note 2.13) in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss comprise structured
bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HUEBERTIEFHHRME (&)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued) 29 HMBEE @
2.9.1 Classification (continued) 2.9.1 748 (#)
The Group reclassifies debt investments when and FEBRENREEEZEEE
only when its business model for managing those ZEBEALIREBFERN
assets changes. DEEHERE-
2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition 2.9.2 MR R AR IFFEST
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets MBEEERBEENXRZH
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which (B AEERRERERILE
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. ZEEHR BR-MBEE
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights R BEEERE RNE
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have MERXEEERFTERD
expired or have been transferred and the group has HEBEAREN KIS A&
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of [C] 3R R 4% |EFESR o
ownership.
2.9.3 Measurement 2.9.351&
At initial recognition, the Group measures a R &R NE R LRI
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of BEZATESM (HEBE
a financial asset not at fair value through profit EXFFEAFES AEE (12
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly NFEEHAEZD)) WEMF
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. BEEERELE ZRSHAG
BENBEE-
Debt instruments BELR
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments BEIAZBEFERESR
depends on the Group’s business model EEEESEEZEREERAR
for managing the asset and the cash flow BEZRERERBME

characteristics of the asset.

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for . B A FFHEMIER
collection of contractual cash flows where EHRERE (ZEHR
those cash flows represent solely payments ERNEEAZINAEEE
of principal and interest are measured at RFR) 2B EZE#H
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt B A5t & o 18 B R 8
investment that is subsequently measured at BR 2 5T 2 R 3t JE ¥ R
amortised cost and is not part of a hedging FR—BOZEBEREZ
relationship is recognised in the consolidated WEREENZEER
statements of comprehensive income when IHRDBEREFR TS
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest EEERAES &
income from these financial assets is included EMHBEEZFIESWA
in finance income using the effective interest ERBRARES AR
rate method. BULA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HRUEBERTIEFHHRME (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.9 Financial assets (continued) 29 MBEE @)
2.9.3 Measurement (continued) 2.9.3 512 (#&)

Debt instruments (continued) BHEITE (&

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for . BATEFAEGD T
amortised cost or at fair value through other REBMERAIEATF
comprehensive income (FVOCI) are measured Bt AHMEEUALRE
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment BZEEDEBRATES
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is AB@mstE-HEBEEA
recognised in profit or loss and presented net TEFAEGAEZE
within other gains/(losses) in the period in BREZWEHEBEIER
which it arises. BERER TEELERH

MR (B518)
AR
2.9.4 Impairment 2.9.4 g

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis AEBEREREENGEA
the expected credit losses associated with its BEER AT RZEH LA
debt instrument carried at amortised cost. The MEZEHREEREE FIE
impairment methodology applied depends on RAzREFERFEEERR
whether there has been a significant increase in EEBKRIBIGMNTE o M &
credit risk. Note 3.1(b) details how the Group 3b)FRAEREBEEEER
determines whether there has been a significant MEREAAEBEMZHE-

increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the MEWEZRAMS > ~EE
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which FEREEUBRESENFEIR
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised RHFZEBEREE HIRERY
from initial recognition of the receivables. THRBERRIERER AR
2HAE518 -
For other receivables and amounts due from related L th FE U 7k 18 K FE Uk A R
parties, the impairment provision is determined EALZRIBMS  HERA
based on the 12-month expected credit losses. ThiRE12E B FEHE BB 18
BEE-
When measuring expected credit loss, the Group REtEEAEEEGBRE  &~&
considers both historical default rate and forward- BEEELENERAIEN
looking information. ‘il
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.12

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

The Group has no offsetting financial instruments in the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2020 and
2021.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Consumables are included within inventories and stated
at cost, using the weighted average method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within administrative expenses. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Trade and other payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

RREERTIBEHTHREE (B

(continued)

2.17 Borrowing costs 2,17 BERS
General and specific borrowings costs directly attributable W - REREESEREE (BE
to the acquisition, construction or production of BREBAUEREARIHEN
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a BE) EBEEEN—REBFEREER
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended RAEEGAAZEEENRES BEE
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until BEARELAERERARILESR
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their ke
intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss FrEREMEERESEEEE M
in the period in which they are incurred. RiEE R o

2.18 Current and deferred income tax 2.18 BEARIRIEFRTSH

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, the Company’s subsidiaries
and associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 GNBEERTITFEHBEHME (&)

OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.18 EHARRIEFRSR (&)

(b)  Deferred income tax (b) BELEFER

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the EEFMSMEBAEREMNE
liability method, on temporary differences arising ERBBEZREBEEEERS
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and B BRZIREEMEZY
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial RERELZEEE AT

statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RREERTIBEHTHREE (B

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 2.18 EHRIEIEFRFR (@)

(b)  Deferred income tax (continued) (b) ELFER (B)
Current and deferred tax is recognised in the BRIFEEDBERMREMEE

consolidated income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods. A defined
benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount
of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

GREERIBETHREE (B

2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 2.19 EEEH (@

(a)  Pension obligations (continued) (a) LBUZTEE #B)
The current service cost of a defined benefit plan, REaRERAZEERT
recognised in the consolidated income statement in FZER R ERFTEIED
employee benefit expense, except where included HRBEE Gt ABEREE
in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the PRI R AFEEBRBAN
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee EEZAERNEEEM- &
service in the current year, benefit changes, Mg gl REE -
curtailments and settlements.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in BERERANEEE SR
profit or loss. o
For defined contribution plans, the Group pays MATETHEKFEMS &
contributions to publicly or privately administered EmHAZENAMBEER
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, ZRIK R Bt B E L 5
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no SR B A MR R H
further payment obligations once the contributions RE rEEBEHEMORE
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as E o RN B HA =% { B 7 50 22
employee benefit expense when they are due. EERAMMEZ-

(b)  Termination benefits (b) ARIEFEF

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
and when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees
without possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HUNEBERFECTHBEME (B)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (continued) 2.19 EE®RH (@

2.20

(c)  Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs, and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprise lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21 Revenue and other income recognition

(a)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods

Sales are recognised when control of the product
has transferred, being when the product is on board
for delivery, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
product. The risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer upon delivery or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the
price specified in the sales contracts. No element of
financing is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term from cash on delivery to 60 days,
which is consistent with market practice.

Receivable is recognised when the product is
delivered as this is the point in time when the
consideration is unconditional, which only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits or
payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised
when goods are delivered to customers.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 HUNEBERFECTHBEME (B)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.22 Leases 222 HHE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed payments.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY 2 RUEBERFETHBEHRE (@)
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
2.22 Leases (continued) 2,22 B (&)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability; and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to
use the land on which various plants and buildings are
situated for 50 years. Amortisation of land use rights
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of
leases.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-value assets are recognized on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY
OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23

2.24

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

Dividends proposed or declared after the reporting period
but before the consolidated financial statements are
authorised for issue, are disclosed as a non-adjusting
event and are not recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate. If the grants
do not relate to any specific expenditure incurred and
all attached condition were complied by the Group,
they are recognised under “other gains/(losses) — net”
in consolidated income statement upon receipt of the
grants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMFBImRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury
department (group treasury) under policies approved
by the board of directors. Group treasury identifies and
evaluates financial risks in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The board provides principles
for overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

(a)  Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally with most
of the transactions denominated in USS$,
Vietnam Dong and Renminbi. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily
through future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations that
are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the operating
subsidiaries of the Group. Therefore, the
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
with respect to Vietnam Dong and Renminbi.
The Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEEMFBIRRMIEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2021, for the Group’s
subsidiary whose functional currency is
US$, if the Vietnam Dong had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the US$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been US$1,362,000
(2020: US$1,777,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains
on translation of trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other payables denominated in Vietnam
Dong.

At 31 December 2021, for the Group’s
subsidiaries whose functional currency
is Renminbi, if the US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the Renminbi
with all other variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have been US$2,000
(2020:US$2,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of cash and cash equivalents
denominated in US$.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EEMFBImRRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets apart from bank balances, the
Group's income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group
exposure to interest rate risk related
primarily to variable rate bank borrowings of
US$35,314,000 (2020: US$39,743,000) and
fixed rate bank borrowings of US$4,994,000
(2020: US$6,616,000).

Borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk,
and borrowings issued at fixed rates expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. As
the tenure of the fixed-rate bank borrowings
range from one to two years, the directors
consider the exposures of present value
interest rate return to be insignificant. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management of the Group
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
US$150,000 (2020: US$169,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on variable rate borrowings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk
Credit risk arises from bank deposits and bank
balances, trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties.

(i) Risk management

The carrying amount of bank deposits and
bank balances, trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related
parties included in the consolidated balance
sheet represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to these
financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories. The Group
has policies to assess the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings. The utilisation of credit
limits is regularly monitored.

For bank deposits and bank balances,
the Group only uses banks and financial
institutions with good reputation. As at
31 December 2021 and 2020, all the bank
balances as detailed in Note 14 are held in
major financial institutions, which are either
state owned or with high credit quality.
Management believes that the credit risk for
bank deposits and bank balances is minimal.

(i) Impairment of financial assets
While structured bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected losses for all trade
receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 40% (2020:
39%) of its trade receivables were from the
five largest trade receivables (2020: five),
which are mainly reputable corporations.
Considering the track record of regular
repayment of trade receivables based on
the Group’s experience with respect to the
collection of these receivables, the directors
are of the opinion that the risk of default by
these customers is not significant.

In respect of trade receivables, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that the
sales of goods are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the
Group performs credit evaluations of these
counterparties and customers. The credit
periods of the majority of these trade
receivables are within 60 days and largely
comprise amounts receivable from business
customers. Given the track record of regular
repayment of receivables from customers,
the directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by customers is not significant.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be close to zero.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

(b)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period
of 36 months before 31 December 2021
and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within this period. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The
Group has identified the GDP in which it sells
its goods and services to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical
loss rates based on expected changes in these
factors.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)

(i)

3 HMBEEKBEIE @)
3.1 HMBEKREZR (&)
b) EERE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i MBEEZRE &)
Trade receivables (continued) U E ZEER (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 FRHEEELE - RIE
December 2021 and 2020 was determined T FRIZEZEHE
as follows for both trade receivables and +ZBE=+—HZEW
contract assets: BEOERAREGNEEZ
EIREELETNT -
More than
1-180 days  181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
ZEZ-F bk i ek i il
31 December 2021 +-B=1+-H B 1E1808 1813600 BiB3608 EH
Expected loss rate FHEEE 0.01% 0.66%  N/ARER 100%
Gross carrying amount BREE
~ trade receivables (US$'000)  —TERBRER
(F£m) 30,501 1,677 - 309 32,487
Loss allowance (US$'000) BREE (TZ1) 3 1 - 309 323
More than
1-180 days ~ 181-360 days 360 days
Current past due past due past due Total
ECEF bk ki i
31 December 2020 +ZA=t+-H HNEA 1£1808  181%360H Bi#360H s
Expected loss rate FHEEE 0.01% 0.89% 20% 100%
Gross carrying amount BREE
~ trade receivables (US$'000) —TEBRER
(F£57) 28,04 2,051 57 38 30,660
Loss allowance (US$'000) BREE (FZ1) 3 20 1 328 362
As at 31 December 2021, the loss allowances W& —&F+ =
for trade receivables were US$323,000 (2020: B=4+—H EKE
US$362,000). Management are of opinion SRV ZEREEES

that that adequate provision for uncollectible

receivable has been made.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are
presented as net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited

against the same line item.

323,000%7T (ZEZE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other receivables, amount due from an
associate and amounts due from related
parties
The management considers that its credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition with reference to the counterparty
historical default rate and current financial
position. The impairment provision is
determined based on the 12-month expected
credit losses which is minimal.

Liquidity risk
Due to the capital-intensive nature of the Group's
business, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve which comprises undrawn
borrowing facilities and cash and cash equivalents
on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 WHBEKRERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MBEBRER (&)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (o wEELEE (B
The table below analyses the Group's financial THREEZEGEEBESHNE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based HHSB THBERAER 2
on the remaining period at the balance sheet BaEsAHEEE AR E
date to the contractual maturity date. The T -RREPEEZEEE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual AEHNRERFAETRE

undiscounted cash flows.

Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5years Over5 years Total
—-ER  -EERE WEELE BRLE fit
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
TR FEx ST TEn FEn
At 31 December 2021 S
+ZBA=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (WD) 32,041 5,300 3,541 - 40,882
Lease liabilities (Note) BEAE (W) 454 380 1,130 1,765 3,729
Trade payables B ARN 17,510 - - - 17,510
Other payables and accruals  EMIERHIBREFER 5,759 - - - 5,759
Amounts due to EAEHEALTE
related parties 517 - - - 517
At 31 December 2020 RZEZ%F
tZA=+-H
Bank borrowings (Note) RITEE (3D 32,922 5,676 8,180 730 47,508
Lease liabilities (Note) REAR (W) 282 282 1,128 2,046 3,738
Trade payables 3=l 6,963 - - - 6,963
Other payables and accruals ~ HAtiE(I R ER s & 7,451 - - - 7,451
Amounts due to EAEHEALHE
related parties 1,358 - - - 1,358
Note: Mt sE
The balances include interest payable on bank borrowings EHGEREREEEZSIHEEME
and lease liabilities up to their respective maturities. TEERMEAEREZFIS
3.2 Capital management 3.2 BXEE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEREEESZEHERARELRE
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going EREBEUFEREELE 2
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders UAKRRTROREAEHMEFRE
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an HRAE UNREFEBEZERG
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. LU DB A2 o
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, BTHEFRRABERGE R ~&EH
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to AIREREIRN FTREZKRESE
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new MREBEEAR ETHRMOIH
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. EEEMREER-
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBEREE @)
3.2 Capital management (continued) 3.2 BEERE @
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group HEREMRT—K > AEEBUE
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This EEBRLEXABRERERER ZLE
ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided by owners’ ERGREEEERRMTZBEE
equity as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Total BRUEE AR E REEBAE
borrowings include non-current bank borrowings, current EREIBITEE - RHEEFER
borrowings, non-current lease liabilities and current lease BiEGaarRBHEEaE.
liabilities.
During 2021, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged NS —FoAERZERIRE T
from 2020, was to maintain a reasonable gearing ratio. ST EMEMEER N Th M
The gearing ratios at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were FEEABBLEERGEKF R
as follows: B HR-ZT-ZTFE+-A
=t+—HZEESBLENT:
2021 2020
—_E—F —EBECEHE
Us$°000 Us$’000
F%E7T FET
Total borrowings HEE 43,327 49,376
Owners’ equity (including non- B AEE (B1F5A
controlling interest in equity) R IR ER) 302,017 301,270
Gearing ratio BEEASMELEE 14.3% 16.4%
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 ATEMGE

The carrying values less impairment provisions of trade
and other receivables, prepayments, amounts due from
related parties, structured bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits and pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due to related parties and trade
and other payables are assumed to approximate their
fair values because of their short maturities. The carrying
value of the long-term other receivables approximates its
fair value as it was estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest
rate that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEERKEIR (B)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEGE (&)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates

(i) AFEER
FHEEEENMBRERA

made in determining the fair values of the financial BATEEIAKRFEN TR

instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed

under the accounting standards.

T AR FEEEH B B
Rfhst e BIFHEE A FEFR
BBABBHRRELEER &
EEZESHEARERES
MITENEA=EE®R-

Level 2
=
Us$'000
FEmT
Recurring fair value measurements EEMATEE
At 31 December 2021 WZ2_—&+"B=+—H
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ B AFEFAEBENMHEE
profit or loss 2,533
Recurring fair value measurements EE M TEE
At 31 December 2020 A _E_EF+_HA=+—H
Financial assets MEEE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BAFEFABENHHEEE
profit or loss 7,982
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
There were no transfers among different levels of fair
values measurement during the year.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
technigues which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and judgements (Note 8).

Current income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in
the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. The estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charges where useful lives are different from those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives and actual residual values
may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation expense in future
periods.

4

EEF A RAE (48)

(a)

(b)

(c)
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 SHEH

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as TEEERREEREAERIITE
the Executive Directors collectively. The Executive Directors EHMITESBRAEEZBERER U
review the Group’s policies and information for the purposes FAZRARDTEER - BE_ZT-—F
of assessing performance and allocating resources. During the +ZA=+—HLFE xEELE—E
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has been operating BB INERBEHEZBERA
in one single business segment, i.e. the manufacture and sale ME-EEERRAZEBRMIEXER &
of fermentation-based food additives, biochemical products FEERN - BEEE KB &1 88
and cassava starch-based industrial products including modified BrEM(CZSIZSE M) °

starch, glucose syrup, MSG, soda, GA and others (2020: same).

(a) Revenue (a) W=
2021 2020
% - 3
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FEmT
Sales of goods HEE MR 382,361 360,741
Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities SR E BN War
The Group receives payments from certain customers rEERRBITENMKRETER
in advance of the performance under the contracts. ZHEMR e TRETHARSIAE
The following table shows how much of the revenue BRZWEREESNABE ZEH
recognised in the current reporting period relates to BE-
carried-forward contract liabilities.
2021 2020
—T—F —EIEF
UsS$’000 Us$'000
F%E7T FE7T
Revenue recognised that was FAENENEBEERZ
included in the contract liabilities B E
balance at the beginning of the
year 4,230 2,506
During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue of BE_E_—F+_"_A=+—HL
approximately US$41,509,000 is derived from a single FREURETH41,509,000F TR E
external customer located in Japan. The revenue is BRZE-IIBEL BEWE K
attributable to the MSG and GA products (2020: no BxfERSaBER (CE-TF:
customers individually contribute 10% or more of the BEREREEEMAERKE10%
Group's revenue). WAL o
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)

Ui

The Group’s revenue by geographical location, which is

SWER (B
(a) Uik ()

FEBRZMIEBMUE (HER#MIEQ

determined by the geographical presence of customers, is BAE) 2oz ENT
as follows:
2021 2020
—EZ—&F —EIEHF
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Vietnam [2q=) 169,363 170,547
Japan H4 62,832 61,195
The PRC HRE 63,447 47,016
ASEAN member countries (other than REEMERE (FEiEHE)

Vietnam) 29,067 26,112
America EE 26,132 26,717
Other regions Hihih & 31,520 29,154

382,361 360,741

Non-current assets, other than prepayments, by location,
which is determined by the country in which the asset is
located, are as follows:

(b)

RUE HEEFMEBERAE 89
ZIRRBEE TR IERIN W
T

2021 2020

—E_—F —E-E
US$'000 US$'000
F= FErx
Vietnam 2gEa) 158,693 165,263
The PRC = 11,287 11,245
Cambodia fIHE 2 -
Total a5t 169,982 176,508
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 ME -BER=E
Construction Plant and Motor Office
in-progress Properties machinery vehicles  equipment Total
TEIR ¥ RERES HE WAZERE L
US§'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US§'000 US$'000 US$'000
R BT TER TER FER R
At 1 January 2020 R-2-2%-A—-H
Cost A 25,976 108,080 463,110 9,857 20,160 627,183
Accumulated depreciation K3t - (77,477) (371,067) (7,373) (17,987) (473,904)
Accumulated impairment L5tREE - (1,100) (3,085) - (22) (4,207)
Net book amount REFE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
Year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZ-ZE
+ZA=+-ALEE
Opening net book amount FNREEE 25,976 29,503 88,958 2,484 2,151 149,072
Additions RE 30,872 316 2,129 314 250 33,881
Transfer EES (3,122) 205 2,917 - - -
Disposals (Note 29) HE (5829) - - (39) (4) ) (45)
Depreciation (Note 21) & (H21) - (2,683) (14,340) (585) (440) (18,048)
Impairment (Note 20) & (fzE20) - (114) (672) - - (786)
Exchange differences ERES - 385 116 15 5 521
Closing net book amount FREEEE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
At 31 December 2020 R-Z2-%F+-A=+-H
Cost A 53,726 110,337 471,343 10,015 20,410 665,831
Accumulated depreciation RENE - (81,511) (388,517) (7,791) (18,424) (496,243)
Accumulated impairment RitRE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REFE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
Year ended 31 December 2021 BEZER--F
+ZB=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount EREZE 53,726 27,612 79,069 2,224 1,964 164,595
Additions RE 9,461 16 1,334 280 305 11,396
Transfer [ (4,107) 131 3,784 - 53 (139)
Disposals (Note 29) HE (M5E29) - - (5) (22) 3) (30)
Depreciation (Note 21) & (1) - (2,791) (13,878) (545) (465) (17,679)
Exchange differences ERESH - 140 53 3 - 196
Closing net book amount EXRREEE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%+-A=+-H
Cost HA 59,080 110,728 471,743 10,043 20,756 672,350
Accumulated depreciation LA E - (84,406) (397,629) (8,103) (18,880) (509,018)
Accumulated impairment LEtRE - (1,214) (3,757) - (22) (4,993)
Net book amount REFE 59,080 25,108 70,357 1,940 1,854 158,339
Depreciation expense of US$16,905,000 (2020: ITERI X 16,905,000 (ZE-ZFF
US$17,199,000) has been charged in cost of sales, US$292,000 17,199,000%7T) ~292,000( T (ZEZ
(2020: US$288,000) in selling and distribution expenses and Z4F 1 288,000% 75) &482,000% 7% (=
US$482,000 (2020: US$561,000) in administrative expenses. T T 561,000 BARINIEE
B A~ $HEE R 3 SR ST MU R AT B FE 2 R 40
& o
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain property,
plant and machinery of the Group amounting to US$786,000
was impaired as no economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal due to the transformation of Phuoc Long Plant in
Vietnam.

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to US$225,000 (2020: US$379,000) on qualifying
assets.

As at 31 December 2021, certain buildings with carrying
amount of US$3,603,000 (2020: Nil), were pledged as
collaterals for the Group's bank borrowings of US$784,000
(2020: Nil) (Note 18).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

6

ME -BERRE (B)
BE_Z_ETFE+_-_HA=+—HILE
B AR ummNEEReE EiEfAE
REFARELEZTRTESKENGR &
EENNEE786,000E T2 EFYE-
B Rt 2R EAE R (A ©

FER AEBEMAEREENBERAE
225,000 7T (Z & ZZ 4 : 379,000% 7T)
BREZR-

A _E_—F+_HA=+—H IEEEA
3,603,000%7T (ZEZEF . 8) WET
EFEIRBRAREBIREITHER784,0003%
T (CEISE E) WIRFS (MIEE18)

EREEERHEAR
() MRREEEARRBEINEHE

FREERBXREIIUTHAESR

amounts relating to leases: AN EEE .
2021 2020
—E—fF ZZTTHF
Us$000 Us$’000
F=5T FET
Land use rights T Hh{sE FR A 3,335 3,594
Building BF 1,498 1,312
Equipment = 8 8
Total right-of-use assets EREEERTE 4,841 4,914
Current lease liabilities RBHEEAR 369 199
Non-current lease liabilities ERBEEAR 2,650 2,818
Total lease liabilities HEaBEE 3,019 3,017
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AR M IR R MR

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(continued)

(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance

sheet (continued)

EREEERBEAR (8)

() RERSEEERREINEE @)

Movement of right of use assets for the year: FRERAEEENES
2021 2020
—E-—5 —E2TEHF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FET FET
At 1 January ®—A—H 4,914 5,073
Addition for the year FARE 376 -
Termination of contract FARAKLESL
during the year (86) -
Amortisation of right-of-use assets FREEERH (405) (280)
Exchange differences ERE%R 42 121
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 4,841 4,914

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income

(i) REESHRERETHEE

statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following REWEREIIUTEHBAERMEAMN
amounts relating to leases: T
2021 2020
T —fF ZRITHE
UsS$’000 Us$’000
F%E7T FET
Amortisation charge of FREEEN
right-of-use assets: B0k E
Land use rights 3 fsE FR A 271 132
Building =S 134 148
405 280
Interest expense (included in FMEMZ
finance cost) (Gt AR #5357 H) 92 89
Expense relating to short-term leases S HRTHEBRANMX
(included in administrative GtAfTTERX)
expenses) 47 43

The total cash outflow for leases, including payment
for short-term leases, in 2021 was US$422,000 (2020:

Us$157,000).
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AR MR M

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7
(continued)

EREEERBERR (B)

(i) FEENHEEHRARBEE

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are

accounted for
The land use rights of the Group are located in the PRC
and Vietnam.

Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd (“Xiamen Vedan”) and
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd (“Shanghai Vedan”),
subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC, have
each been granted rights to use two lands in the PRC by
the relevant authority for 50 years, which will expire in
2042 and 2060, respectively.

Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Limited, a
subsidiary established and operating in Vietnam, has
obtained the rights to use certain lands in Vietnam by the
relevant authority for 43 to 50 years, which will expire in
2041.

Rental contract for building is made for a fixed period of
10 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

3
A E B £ 3t {8 AR 7 i B e e
'_-IjO

A PR B 3L e 3 B B B A B JEL T
KAERERAR (TEFKA) &
TEERACEBSRAT (TLEK
1) & BEMER PR TR ER
PR M ISR FEA5085 0 5
MR —EM - FR -EETEED
HA o

kAt (R ROABRAE > —ER
HERIKEENHRBEAR BB
RRA B PIES E R A T L3t a0
R FHRAI3ESOE  BR T
m—E R

BFNEESGHNTE T FEER
MR

HEDLEENERLEHE TOS
BEETRBIRR RGN - HE W
A 52 5 0 AE R 2258 (T AR A PRI
FAEEERIRIFERIRSN - 1EH
BEEETSRFEEENRE-
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8 HWEEE
Software
Goodwill and licence Trademarks Total
He B RER L ait
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
FEx ST xR S
At 1 January 2020 RZZE”-Z5-F—H
Cost A 8,001 2,013 12,189 22,203
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1,751) (12,126) (13,877)
Accumulated impairment REHAfE (3,580) - - (3,580)
Net book amount REBE 4,421 262 63 4,746
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-Z-ZF
+ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FENREFE 4,421 262 63 4,746
Amortisation charge (Note 21) BT (Mz21) - (103) (11) (114)
Additions hE - 76 - 76
Impairment loss (Note 20) REER (M320) (3,107) - - (3,107)
Exchange differences ERELE 495 - - 495
Closing net book amount EREEFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
At 31 December 2020 RZE-FEH5+-A=+—H
Cost A& 8,496 2,089 12,189 22,774
Accumulated amortisation Rt EH - (1,854) (12,137) (13,991)
Accumulated impairment REtHE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount REFE 1,809 235 52 2,096
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-Z--%&
+ZB=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENEBERE 1,809 235 52 2,09
Amortisation charge (Note 21) BT (EF21) - (113) (14) (127)
Additions RE - 17 - 17
Transfer i - 139 - 139
Exchange differences ERELE (25) - - (25)
Closing net book amount EXRE@FE 1,784 278 38 2,100
At 31 December 2021 RZZEZ—-+ZA=+—-H
Cost 2 8,471 2,245 12,189 22,905
Accumulated amortisation R - (1,967) (12,151) (14,118)
Accumulated impairment i RE (6,687) - - (6,687)
Net book amount IREEE 1,784 278 38 2,100

Amortisation charge is included in administrative expenses.
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AR MR M

8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 8

Impairment tests for goodwill:

Goodwill is attributed to the Group’s CGUs according to
operating segment.

E (nﬂ)
P-%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ']%‘:t :

AEDREEESHNOIEENEEBHN
REEf-

The PRC Vietnam
MSG MSG
related related
business business Total
[ ik 4 kS
e MR Hast
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$’000
FE FEx FET
At 31 December 2021 BRI —%
+ZB=+—H 1,054 730 1,784
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZEEF
+ZBA=+—H 1,079 730 1,809

Management determined the recoverable amount based on
the higher of value-in-use (“VIU") and the fair value less cost
of disposal (“FVLCD") calculations of the cash-generating unit
("CGU"). As management considered the recoverable amount
under the VIU method to be higher, the recoverable amount
of a CGU is determined based on VIU calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets prepared by management and approved by the Board
of Directors covering a five years period. Cash flows beyond the
five years period are extrapolated using the estimated growth
rates stated below if applicable. The growth rates do not
exceed the long-term average growth rates for the MSG related
business in which the CGU operates.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation of

EEERBEFEHRNIRE I (THREUR
TEA) NEREE (EREHE) &2
FEREENRST (R FEBHEMRE)
MEPHRSEEETRESE HNE
EERAEREERETHNIROEEE
BE FALHIREEMZATREIEEETD
UstEEREEZAREE - ZEtEE
BEREERGRRAEEFTGHEZR
FHMBERESHZERAMRSAER
AET - BHEIFHZREREEAUT
FREFZ AEHERFER WER) - B R
EAERRRRRESEUMMEEZRKE
HEEFHNRATHERER

BUFEPEREEARNREEAUR

the goodwill in the PRC MSG related CGU are as follows. EFRABEZEERRM T
The PRC
]
2021 2020
Sales per annum (US$'000) FFEHERE (FE7T) 13,032 - 14,913 11,608 - 13,287
Growth rate in sales HEIL R 3% - 7% 3% - 12%
Gross margin ESVIES 14.8% - 15.4% 18.3% - 19.0%
Other operating costs per annum SEHMEENSX
(US$°000) (F%7) 1,234 - 1,448 1,615 - 1,708
Long term growth rate REERX 3% 3%
Discount rate (pre-tax) HIRE (Ra0) 15.5% 15.4%
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8

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill: (continued)

Sales per annum and growth rate in sales is the average annual
growth rate over the five years forecast period. It is based on
past performance and management’s expectations of market
development and current industry trends and includes long
term inflation forecasts.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of market developments. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments.

Other operating costs are the fixed costs of the CGUs, which do
not vary significantly with sales volumes or prices. Management
forecasts these costs based on the current structure of the
business, adjusting for inflationary increases and these do not
reflect any future restructurings or cost saving measures. The
amounts disclosed above are the average operating costs for
the five-year forecast period.

The management has performed sensitivity analysis over the
PRC MSG related business. A decrease in annual sales volume
growth rate by 25.1%, a decrease in annual sales price growth
rate by 0.4%, a decrease in gross margin by 1.0%, an increase
in annual operating costs by 0.5%, a decrease in long term
growth rate by 4.6% or an increase in discount rate by 2.6%,
all changes taken in isolation, full impairment of the remaining
balance of goodwill would be required.

Based on the impairment review on the goodwill of PRC
and Vietnam MSG related business, the recoverable amount
calculated based on value-in-use calculations exceeds its
carrying value. As a result, no impairment loss was recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SUBSIDIARIES

9

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

ME2E

THHBRIZEZ

—F+ZHA=+—H2

December 2021: TEMRBABBE
Proportion of
Place of Proportion of  ordinary shares
incorporation/ Particulars of ordinary shares held by
establishment and Principal activities and issued/paid up held by non-controlling
Name kind of legal entity place of operation share capital the Group interest
EMERIL/ BRI rEARAZ  FEREREERAZ
&1 NRiEEERER FTEEBREE Y BET/BRREFHE BERLA BERILA
Directly hefd:
BERE
Winball Investment Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
("BVI") US$1 each
Winball Investment Limited HEELES TEEREZR 100l EREEIZTN
(EEELEE)) BER
Talent Top Investment Ltd. BVI Investment holding in Hong Kong 100 Ordinary shares of 100% -
US$1 each
Talent Top Investment Ltd. ERRUHE GEERREER 100 EREEIEZTH
SRR
Indirectly held:
BERE
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$61,109,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Burghley Enterprise Pte., Ltd. #ms ERIRRELER 61,109,000%7%
BER
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. Singapore Investment holding in Singapore US$20,177,000 100% -
Ordinary shares
Ordino Investments Pte., Ltd. b ERMEREER 20,177,000%7%
gk
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation Vietnam Manufacturing and sale of fermentation- 171,574,967 99.9% 0.1%
Limited based food additives and biochemical Ordinary shares of
products and cassava starch-based US$1 each
industrial products including MSG, GA,
modified starch, glucose syrup, soda
and acid in Vietnam and for export
Vedan (Vietnam) Enterprise Corporation e THENERHEEEBRERAME £ 1715749678
Limited ERRAERNIEER SFEKE SREGIERTH
AGk 2URR SERE BIR BRR
ol n|
Shanghai Vedan Enterprise Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch, U$$9,800,000 100% -
company seasoning and other products in the Registered capital
PRC
LERALERRAT HE BREEAR EEOEREERE R 9,800,000% 7
ERARHREMER EiuN
Xiamen Vedan Foods Co. Ltd. PRC, limited liability Packaging and sale of MSG, starch, US$20,270,000 100% -
company seasoning and other products in the Registered capital
PRC
EMRARRERAT T EREERT EPEOEREERE B 20,270,000%70 -
AR REMER HRER
Xiamen Darong Import & Export Trade PRC, limited liability Sale of starch and other products in the ~ US$254,000 100% -
Co,, Ltd. company PRC Registered capital
ERABELOEZBRAT HE BREERR EPEHERNREMER 254,000%7¢ -
EiEN
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd Cambodia Sale of fermentation-based food additives  Registered capital of Riels 100% -
and biochemical products and cassava 2,640,000,000
starch-based industrial products in
Cambodia and for export
Vedan International (Cambodia) Co., Ltd REE RRERCZLRRRTME LCER ZREX
RABRMIEEREERLO 2,640,000,0005% 7
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10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 10

Movement of the investment in an associate is as follows:

REEATZIRE
REEABDZREZEHUNT !

2021 2020

25 —BIFH

Us$'000 Us$’000

F=7T FET

As at 1 January w—A—H 4,903 6,020
Share of post-tax loss of an associate FE(LEE A TIBRIR B AR (201) (1,117)
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 4,702 4,903

Nature of the investment in an associate as at 31 December
2021 and 2020:

RZE_—Frk_ZF_-_ZF+°H
=t—H REEQARNZREEENT

Country of Particulars of % Measurement
Name Incorporation issued share capital interest held method
%1E B3l EES BRITREHE HAEEE% HERE
Dacin International The Cayman Islands 21,027,559 shares of 30 Equity
Holdings Limited US$1 each
EMEREZERBRAR HEHRE 21,027,559 K ek
EE1ETZ KRG

The associate is principally engaged in real estate development
in Vietnam.

Dacin International Holdings Limited is a private company and
there is no quoted market price available for its shares.

There is capital commitment amounting to US$112,000 (2020:

US$112,000) in relation to the Group’s investment in the
associate.
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10 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 10 REBHEATZIRE (8)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information M ER S EHER
2021 2020
—E-—% %
Us$’000 Us$’000
F=7T FET
Net assets as at 1 January W—A—BZEEFE 16,342 20,067
Loss for the year FRFBE (668) (3,725)
Net assets as at 31 December R+ZA=+—H2Z
EEFE 15,674 16,342
Interest in an associate (30%) REE AT Z #m(30%) 4,702 4,903
11 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 11 BENISZEMIA
2021 2020
% ZEIEHE
Uss$’000 US$'000
FE7T FET
Financial assets at amortised cost BBHRATEZ
MEEE
- Trade receivables —EWE Z RN 32,164 30,298
— Other receivables —HME WA 996 2,151
— Amounts due from related parties —RUAEREANLRIE 1,442 862
— Short-term bank deposits and pledged — AR ITER R
bank deposits EIRIRITIER 1,075 21,817
— Cash and cash equivalents -RERREEEY 66,136 42,359
Financial assets at fair value through BAFESABRZ
profit or loss MBEE
— Structured bank deposits —ERMEIRITER 2,533 7,982
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEMER A EZ
MHaE
— Trade payables —ENEZEKRR 17,510 6,963
— Other payables and accruals —HMEMRIER
FEst &R 5,759 7,451
— Amounts due to related parties — B AREANLRIE 517 1,358
— Bank borrowings —iRITEE 40,308 46,359
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12 INVENTORIES 12 =8

2021 2020
—E—F TEIEF
Us$’000 Us$’000
FE7T FET
Consumables JHFE M 6,711 6,403
Raw materials RS 46,854 45,890
Work in progress RS 6,389 2,776
Finished goods &IpEam 41,758 36,773
101,712 91,842

Less: Provision for impairment losses on B FEERERERE
inventories (64) (177)
101,648 91,665

The cost of inventories of US$271,177,000 (2020:
US$240,361,000) has been charged in cost of sales.

The write-off and reversal of impairment of inventories included

in cost of sales amounted to US$16,000 (2020: US$3,000) and
US$113,000 (2020: US$50,000), respectively.
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EEMFBImRRMEE

13

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FE Wt B2 53 BR 7k e L fth FE W 7R IR

2021 2020
—E_—F —EFETFE

us$000 Us$’000
FE7T FE=x
Trade receivables from third parties ERE=1EZRMN 32,487 30,660
Less: loss allowance B RS (323) (362)
Trade receivables — net FEWE B IR —F %8 32,164 30,298
Prepayments FETRIE 12,434 11,794
VAT recoverable EEdER LY 737 1,103
Other receivables HhEW=IE 873 2,019
Amount due from an associate & W Bt A B RRIE 3 10

Loan to an associate (Note (b)) WBWFBE QAT ZER
(Mg 5E (b)) 120 122
46,331 45,346

Less: non-current portion W FEBNEAEL

— Prepayment for plant and equipment — R K& EEMRIE (2.718) (3,711)
Current portion BN HA &8 53 43,613 41,635

Prepayments mainly represent advance payment for the
purchase of raw materials and plant and equipment.

The carrying values of the Group’s trade and other receivables
approximate their fair values due to their short maturity.

ANMAETEEMRBREEERE &

REBTAMNBIRIR

MRHRERE  FEEEWE SRR E
KRB REERE A TEEE-
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The credit terms of trade receivables range from cash on
delivery to 60 days. The Group may grant a longer credit period
to certain customers, subject to the satisfactory results of credit
assessment. The ageing of the trade receivables based on
invoice date is as follows:

13

FE Uk & 5 AR 7k e H fth FE Wa 7R IR (48)
EREZERRZEEHRNFEIMGRE
OR - FEFAMETERRIBRE
B MEZRREENGEZAEER-
EWEZRFEEZAHZRENT

2021 2020

% T HF

Us$’000 Us$'000

FE7T FET

0 - 30 days 0E30%k 21,790 20,880
31 - 90 days 31E90XK 9,694 8,292
91 — 180 days 91FE 180K 368 284
181 — 365 days 181FE 365K 124 829
Over 365 days 365K E 511 375
32,487 30,660

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2020 and
2021 are the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 13 EUE 5 R R H th U R IE (48)
The carrying amounts of the trade and other receivables are FEW B SR R H At fE R IE Z SR E B
denominated in the following currencies: BTyEEEE

2021 2020
% 2T HF
Us$'000 Us$'000
F=7T FE
Vietnam Dong A 20,614 21,818
uss$ =T 15,782 14,703
Renminbi AR 9,761 8,711
Others Hith 174 114
46,331 45,346
(a) Loss allowance of trade receivables (a) REWREZRMZEEERE
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to TEBRRASEMBREENSE9
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime WEEA A EFEHEEBIE 5
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. FrEREWE ZRTIXA 2 ATEIRE
HEE-
The closing loss allowance for trade receivables as at 31 B —EFEREBETEE+"H
December 2021 and 2020 reconciles to the opening loss =t+—HZEKEZERZEXREB
allowance as follows: EHEEEFYEREG ZHERN
T
2021 2020
—E—%F 2T HF
Us$'000 UsS$'000
F=7T FE
Opening loss allowance R—A—BZE¥EE
as at 1 January BE 362 488
Decrease in loss allowance RERGE KRR PR
recognised in consolidated income Z SRR R D
statement during the year (39) (126)
Closing loss allowance ®W+ZBA=+—Hz
as at 31 December FREBEEE 323 362
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Loss allowance of trade receivables (continued)

The provision for credit loss of receivables have been
included in administrative expenses in the consolidated
income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance
account are generally written off when there is no
expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet
date is the carrying value of each class of receivable
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral
as security.

Loan to an associate

As at 31 December 2021, the loan to an associate of
US$120,000 (2020: US$122,000) which is unsecured,
bears interest at 4.5% (2020: 4%) per annum,
denominated in US$ and repayable on demand with
three-day notice.
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FE M & 5 e B HL fth FE W k1R (48)

(a)

(b)

FEWE ZARR Z AR ()
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W (o 8 % 3R < IR A8 o

FEUE Z R H M EWRIERZ
HMER T FEEEREEE-

REEE ReEERBR EMRE
FHEBIRRZIREE A EEL
R A E R IR R R o
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Ex (TEZTEHF 1 122,000%7)
ZREABIER BEMNELI 5%
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 14 RERBREEEY -EEERITE
BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS R IR T ERRIRIRRITER
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

2021 2020
B -F —BITH
Us$'000 Us$'000
F=7T FEx
Short-term bank deposits with original FIHREAEB=EBAZ
maturity over three months SHRIRTT X = 21,111
Pledged bank deposits (note (a)) IRIFIRITERR (X (a)) 1,075 706
Structured bank deposits (note (b)) EEMRITER (EED) 2,533 7,982
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERE 66,136 42,359
69,744 72,158
As at 31 December 2021, cash at banks of US$66,003,000 RZE-_—F+-B=+—H>#RIT
(2020: US$42,181,000) and bank deposits of US$3,608,000 IH£66,003,000ExT (ZE_EF :
(2020: US$29,799,000) were exposed to credit risk. 42,181,000 7T) K iR 1777 7X3,608,0003
7T (ZE T4 1 29,799,000% 7T) EER{E
Rk
The remittance of the funds out of the PRC bank accounts of PEH P EIRITARE 2 B 16,978,000 7T
US$16,978,000 (2020: US$16,631,000) and Vietnam bank (ZE”-Z4%F 116,631,000 7T) KEH
accounts of US$52,973,000 (2020: US$51,521,000) is subject BRRITIRE 2 &$52,973,000% 7T (=
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC and Vietnamese T T4 1 51,521,000%7t) B RIEST
governments, respectively. P B 7 it e B Y S BEE 1 4 7l o
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank rEBZREAREEEY  RHRRITHE
deposits, pledged bank deposits and structured bank deposits AR IRITE R R A B IRITE IR
are denominated in the following currencies: TEKE:
2021 2020
Uss$’000 US$'000
F=E=7T FET
Vietnam Dong el 31,571 34,325
us$ E 25,495 19,844
Renminbi AR 11,468 15,770
Hong Kong dollar BT 107 74
New Taiwan dollar Atk 966 2,143
Others HAth 137 2
69,744 72,158
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14 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, STRUCTURED 14 RERFEEEY SBERGTE
BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS X SEHRSRITE AR R IR IR SR 1T 77 K
AND PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued) (48)

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group at the end REIEHR AEBZERFEMNEHIW
of the reporting period were as follows: T
2021 2020
—E-—5 2T HF
Short-term bank deposits with original FIHREAEB=EAZ
maturity over three months FRHRIRITIE R N/ATREF 5.0%
(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) IRIPIRITER
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank balances N ZE_—F+ZHA=+—H =&
amounting to US$1,075,000 (2020: US$706,000) were £ HMIRTTAERR 1,075,000 7T (Z
deposited at designated bank accounts in certain banks T ”F4HF 706,000%7m) H1EA
as guarantee deposits for certain letter of credits released rEBREFEENETERENE
to the Group's customers. RERERE TRITHNIEERITIR
Eo
(b) Structured bank deposits (b) #HEHEMEIRITER
As at 31 December 2021, the structured bank deposits A —E_—F+-_HB=+—H &
amounting to US$2,533,000 (2020: US$7,982,000) T SRITER2,533,000% % (=8
represents wealth management products issued by — =4 1 7,982,000%7T) AHEE
certain reputable banks in PRC with guaranteed principal, FTHMAHIBITHTNEVER B
variable interest and terms less than 182 days. Changes ERAARFREAES - FHMNEESH
in fair value of these investments were recognised in RORIB2KR -ZERENAFE
“other gains/(losses) — net” in the consolidated income SR IEEREREDS THMIK
statement. %=,/ (B548) — Bl °
15 SHARE CAPITAL 15 fg#

Authorised ordinary shares

EELBER
Par value Number
us$ of shares Us$'000
H{EET KR &E FERT
At 1 January 2020, A _E_TF—-F—H->
31 December 2020, “EEE+°AZ+—B
1 January 2021 and —E_—%—-A—Hk
31 December 2021 S —H+-B=+—H 0.01 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares
BETRBREER
Par value Number
us$ of shares Us$'000
E{EET K& FERT
At 1 January 2020, R ZZE"ZTF—F—A-
31 December 2020, “Z-EHE+-A=+—H"
1 January 2021 and 2 —-f5—-B—Hk
31 December 2021 S —F+-RB=+—H 0.01 1,522,742,000 15,228
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16 RESERVES 16 f#fE
Share  Exchange Merger ~ Statutory  Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
RiPEE ERREE A6HEE  EEHRE RERA At
(Mizka)  (HIEEb))
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Uss$'000
TEn TZn TZn TEr TEr TZn
At 1 January 2020 RIEZEE—H—H 47,358 6,774 79,994 828 137,332 272,286
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profit for the year FEERF - - - - 16,650 16,650
Other comprehensive income EHftZ2HEIKA
Currency translation differences ERZH - 3,102 - - - 3,102
Total comprehensive income  2EKAHBE - 3,102 - - 16,650 19,752
Total transactions with HBEBEAZERRE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) BRE (Hi324) - - - - (6,206) (6,206)
At 31 December 2020 RIBZZE
+-A=+—H 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 285,832
At 1 January 2021 RZZ-—-%—F—H 47,358 9,876 79,994 828 147,776 285,832
Comprehensive income ZEKA
Profit for the year FER A - - - - 11,014 11,014
Other comprehensive income  Et2EKA
Currency translation differences ERZ# - 907 - - - 907
Total comprehensive income  Z2EIKALBE - 907 - - 11,014 11,921
Total transactions with HBEBEAZERRE
owners
Dividends paid (Note 24) BRRE (Er24) - - - - (11,192) (11,192)
Reallocation of statutory reserve ATE (& EH A - - - 46 (46) -
At 31 December 2021 RIZEZ-—%&
+ZB=+-H 47,358 10,783 79,994 874 147,552 286,561
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16 RESERVES (continued) 16 f#fE (@
Notes: MiEE
(a) Merger reserve (a) BfHEHE
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference AEENGHEBRRENR_SZF
between the nominal value of the share capital and share +ZBZ+ BN EEEMHERUKE
premium of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group MEASMNKRAEE KRG HERERR
reorganisation completed on 26 December 2002 and the nominal FIMETXRMETZIRADENE
value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange Ko
therefor.
(b)  Statutory reserve (b) EEHE
The PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the FEATRIERAR R ZI0%EETE
companies’ net profits to the statutory reserves fund until such REE HELABTERATGMESR
fund reaches 50% of the companies’ registered capitals. The Z50% SRR E  EEQES
statutory reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the AFEAUIRE R EERIEMATZ
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase MEEX FIRABALBESBERTNRD
registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is AEMERRLD25%
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered
capitals.
17 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 17 BEEZRR -EBstERAREMES
PAYABLES RIH
2021 2020
—EFE—F —EIEF
Us$’000 Us$’000
F=E7T FE7T
Current BN A
Trade payables FE T B 5 8RR 17,510 6,963
Accruals FESTE R 10,596 9,096
Payable of purchase of property, EEEME BER
plant and equipment and REURBERARIE
construction costs 476 1,466
Contract liabilities (Note (a)) G 8aE (k@) 5,885 4,230
Other payables HhEARIE 4,359 5,873
Total trade payables, accruals and FETE SR FESt &R
other payables REMAE G RIE4E5E 38,826 27,628
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17 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND OTHER 17
PAYABLES (continued)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the ageing of trade payables
based on invoice date is as follows:

FE{t 8 B AR FEsT B A R H thFE (<

mMIE (48)

RZE-_ -k FT-FTE+-HA
=t+—H BNESERREZAHZIRER

BT
2021 2020
e it e 22
Us$’000 US$'000
FET FET
0 - 30 days 0E30X 16,851 5,515
31 - 90 days 31FE90XK 659 1,448
17,510 6,963

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables, accruals
and other payables are denominated in the following

FEBZEMNEZRT B BAKEM

BAMEZ I REEE THEREE

currencies:
2021 2020
B —ECEF
Us$'000 Us$'000
F=E=T FEx
Vietnam Dong W E 20,022 13,661
us$ e 12,696 8,369
New Taiwan Dollar et 24 24
Renminbi AR 5,995 5,522
Others Hith 89 52
38.826 27,628

(@) Contract liabilities

(a) BHNERE

BHNREFERRRNTFERZE
mHEZFARE SN RER K
ERERRNTFERARED -

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposits
or payments received in advance for sales of goods not
yet delivered to customers. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to customers.
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18 BANK BORROWINGS 18 fRITEH
2021 2020
—E—F TEIEF
Us$’000 Us$’000
F=T FET
Non-current JEBNHA
- Long-term bank borrowings —RERITEE
- secured —HigE 12,856 13,501
— Long-term bank borrowings —RHERTEE
- unsecured —EIER 1.776 6,164
Less: current portion of long-term B RERTEEZ
bank borrowings BN ER &8 53 (5,985) (5,679)
8,647 13,986
Current BN &R
— Short-term bank borrowings — AR ITEE
— secured — Bk 15,698 18,061
— Short-term bank borrowings —iEHRIRITEE
— unsecured —mig 9,978 8,633
— Current portion of long-term —REIRITEEZ
bank borrowings — secured BNEAER 3 — HB KR 4,776 1,291
— Current portion of long-term —RHERITHREZ
bank borrowings — unsecured BERER 3 — M IE 4R 1,209 4,388
31,661 32,373
Total bank borrowings IRITIEE4ERE 40,308 46,359
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18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 18 $RITBE (88

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings R_E_—FEkR_ZE_FTF+_AH
were repayable as follows: =+—B  AEBZETESBRUTEH

EIEE !

2021 2020

—EZ—&F —ETZ2HF

Us$’000 Us$’000

F=7T FET

Within 1 year 1R 31,661 32,373
Between 1 and 2 years 1FE26F 5,216 5,536
Between 2 and 5 years 2 ESFE 3,431 7,786
Over 5 years S5EL E - 664
40,308 46,359

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate

REBEHR ~EEESFREHNMNEE

changes and the contractual repricing dates at the end of the BREHNEMIEBRROT
reporting period are as follows:

2021 2020
—T”—fF ZEIEHE
uUss$’000 us$’000
FE7T FERT
Within 6 months SEERS 27,861 29,533
Between 7 and 12 months TE12E8 3,800 2,840
Between 1 and 5 years 1ZE55F 8,647 13,322
Over 5 years SEM E - 664
40,308 46,359

The carrying values of the Group’s borrowings approximate

their fair values.

The effective interest rates per annum of the Group’s

FERBEZRAELAEATERSE

RESHR *EFAEEZBEREFNEN

borrowings at the end of the reporting period were as follows: T
2021 2020
T ZZTTHF
us$ E 1.1% 1.7%
New Taiwan dollar mAatk 1.8% 1.8%
Renminbi AR 4.6% N/AT 3

Annual Report 2021 E 185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

18 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

RiT (& ﬁ (nﬁ)

ZKE%EZEEE{E]?LX"FEM‘EHE :

2021 2020
B % —E°FTHF
Us$'000 Us$'000
F=E7T FE7T
uss E 38,088 44,254
New Taiwan dollar A 1,436 2,105
Renminbi AR 784 -
40,308 46,359
The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: TEBBEUTKREABEME
2021 2020
B % —BITH
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=7T TFET
Floating rate: TR
— Expiring within one year —R—FREH 117,023 105,480
- Expiring beyond one year —R—FBEIE 32,740 31,748
Fixed rate: TR
- Expiring within one year —R—FREIH 12,664 6,100
— Expiring beyond one year —R—F%IH 11,035 9,299
173,462 152,627

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has aggregate
bank facilities of approximately US$213,770,000 (2020:
US$203,162,000) for bank borrowings, trade finance and other
general banking facilities. Unutilised amount as at 31 December
2021 amounted to US$173,462,000 (2020: US$152,627,000).
Among them, US$110,258,000 (2020: US$98,658,000) and
US$8,622,000 (2020: Nil) of the unutilised bank facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees issued by the Company and
pledged by the Group’s buildings with carrying amount of
US$3,603,000 (2020: Nil) (Note 6), respectively.
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 19 EEFREM
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary RIEFFEMIDBHBEEEEIUNEREZE
differences under the liability method using the principal tax FMEERERNETERIANMBEYERE
rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. REETE -
The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: RIEFMFREBBEZSNOT :
2021 2020
—EZ—&F TR E
Us$’000 Us$’000
FE7T FE=x
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — R EBIB 1218 B & Uk =
recovered after more than 12 months ZIREFTISM AR 1,665 2,134
The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as FIEFTSMARE S FENMT ¢
follows:
2021 2020
—EZ—&F T
Us$'000 Us$’000
FE7T FE=
At 1 January w—EB—H 2,134 2,705
Credited to consolidated income sFAGRE R EmR (fEE23)
statement (Note 23) (469) (571)
At 31 December w+ZB=+—H 1,665 2,134

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting
of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

FEEELEFMSREERER CRFtRIE
AR IR B A B RIS BRAT) B EHW
Lk

RIEFRSRERE

Accelerated tax depreciation

MR IAITE
2021 2020
—E”—F ZEIEHE
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FE7
At 1 January w—EB—H 3,818 4,362
Charged to consolidated income statement iR 4R & W id R A BR (420) (544)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 3,398 3,818
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 19 EEFRBIR (&)

Deferred income tax assets

BEFRSREE

Other temporary differences

HMEREL
2021 2020
& —EIEE
US$’000 us$'000
F=rx FE=1
At 1 January w—B—H (1,684) (1,657)
Credited to consolidated income statement st A& WER (49) (27)
At 31 December W+ZBE=+—H (1,733) (1,684)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the profits
of PRC subsidiaries of the Group derived since 1 January 2008
will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to foreign investors. Deferred
income tax liabilities of US$1,122,000 (2020: US$1,055,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of
these PRC subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. The
unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries are intended to reinvest
to expand PRC markets.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised in respect of
tax losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
unrecognised deferred income tax assets of US$166,000 in
respect of the unrecognised tax loss of US$662,000 which will
expire within five years.

There is no unrecognised deferred income tax assets for tax loss
for the Group as at 31 December 2021.
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20 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 20 Hftgzs ~ (8518) — 28

2021 2020

—E—F —EIEF

Us$'000 Us$’000

T=E5T FExT

Net exchange gains PE 2 s %5 0P BE 387 137
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HEME BERZEZ

and equipment Wik (#518) 47 (37)

Impairment of property, plant and ME - BERRHBRE

equipment - (786)

Sales of scrap materials BE L8 & 240 290

Government grant BT # B 96 32

Impairment of goodwill (Note 8) mEERE (MFEE8) - (3,107)
Fair value gains on structured ERERTERZATE

bank deposits W & 151 173

Others Hith 714 432

1,635 (2,866)

Annual Report 2021 E 189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR M IR R MR

21 EXPENSES BY NATURE 21 BMESEZAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution HE A HE K7 iHR X R AT B 2 PR
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: BiEZHEZSHOT
2021 2020
—E—F —E°FTHF
Us$'000 Us$'000
T=E7T FEx
Changes in inventories and FERBRAHERES

consumables used (Note 12) (MfsE12) 271,177 240,361
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8)  HEFEE#H (fizEs) 127 114
Amortisation of right-of-use assets (Note 7) R EEHH (H:E7) 405 280
Auditor’s remuneration % B4 B &7 BN
—Audit services —ZER 355 353
—Non-audit services —IERZHARTS 4 4
Depreciation on property, plant and ME- -BERZEINE

equipment (Note 6) (Fz¥6) 17,679 18,048
Reversal of impairment of inventories FEREEE (EE12)

(Note 12) (113) (50)
Write-off of inventory (Note 12) MEEFE (HsE12) 16 3
Expense relating to short-term lease HIGHEERRANEX 47 43
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26) EERMMEZ (MEt26) 45,384 40,684
Reversal of loss allowance of FEWE ZERFRESHEEZ

trade receivables (Note 13) #EE (MF5E13) (39) (126)
Technical support fee (Note 32(b)) B EE (M:E32(0)) 2,210 2,164
Travelling expenses EhkFE X 1,270 1,519
Transportation expenses RiBHEX 11,714 8,330
Advertising expenses EEEX 3,115 4,389
Repair and maintenance expenses HEMRERS 9,890 12,308
Other expenses HipE sz 5,773 6,572

Total cost of sales, selling and distribution — #5% B 7s - $4 & K& 2 85
expenses and administrative expenses B RITE R 40 %A 369,014 334,996
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22 FINANCE INCOME - NET

MEBUWA— B8

2021 2020
—E_—& —EFETFE

us$000 Us$'000

F=Ex FE=rx

Bank interest income IRITFI B WA 562 724
Interest income from an associate xE—BEEEAT 2

FMEWA 7 4

Finance income 2RV ON 569 728

Interest expense on bank borrowings IRTEEMNERL (469) (763)

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaEERZ (92) (89)

Less: amounts capitalised on B EBREE
qualifying assets (Note 6) BARI{EMIA

(ftzE6) 225 379

Finance costs Ep (336) (473)

Finance income — net BT URA — 3 RE 233 255
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R

23

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Taxation on profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

23

FRigI Bz
EHZIRIAREAN G ERREF R
EMEERAERRZRITREAE-

REFEWBERANGFZPREREES

2021 2020

% =<2 5

Uss$’000 Us$'000

FE7T FET

Enterprise income tax (“EIT") EEMRER 4,465 6,074
Over-provision of income tax in BEFEMSRBERE

previous years (14) (163)

Total current tax BVERTR IE 40 %8 4,451 5,911

Deferred income tax (Note 19) IRIEFRSHE (M3s%19) (469) (571)

3,982 5,340

The income tax on the Group's profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the applicable tax rate for Vietnam Vedan, which is a major
subsidiary of the Group, as follows:

SEBGRERAEMNNPIISRA RS
FRAAEERFENE AR BEKRINE
BIEmMstENERMRATE > 8
T

2021 2020

—E-—5 —EIEHF

Us$’000 Us$’'000

F=T FET

Profit before income tax R P15 3R A& A 15,014 22,017
Tax calculated at tax rate of 15% BI5% 2 MEHEZRMIE

(2020: 15%) (Z2ZEF 1 15%) 2,252 3,303

Tax effects of different tax rates TRMEBEZMBLE 1,763 1,536

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes ENCIE L E 172 1,061

Income not subject to tax BEFRHRUA (25) (196)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BRZAIREIEREEE

tax losses (166) (201)

Over-provision in prior years BEFEBREERE (14) (163)

Income tax expenses FriStaRs2 3,982 5,340

EIT is provided on the basis of the statutory profit for financial
reporting purposes, adjusted for income and expenses items
which are not assessable or deductible for income tax purposes.
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FEMBERRMEE
23 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 23 FRRIREAX (8)
(i) Vietnam (i) ®mE
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s principal BB AR ESTAIEMEIA
operations in Vietnam is 15%, which is an incentive tax AERTHURNEIEZEBNERE
rate offered by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated EFRIERNEA15% ARAREAM
in the subsidiary’s investment license. For non-principal MERMATHNEERE S
operation in Vietnam, the applicable EIT rate for the NFEFTEZEEEMS  ~EENER
Group is 20%. EEMBIRNER20% -
(i) The PRC (i) =
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operation in the AEBREPENEENEREER
PRC is 25%. BMER25%
(iii) Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia (i) o EHERIHEE
No Singapore/Hong Kong/Cambodia profits tax has been HRAEERAFEE T EEFM
provided as the Group had no estimated assessable profit W~ B e R IR RN S 1S i Bt
arising in or derived from Singapore, Hong Kong and FESRFLE M > (& I 3 4 1 W 03
Cambodia during the year. BB RIERA SR
(iv) Taiwan (iv) 52
The applicable EIT rate for the Group’s operations in REBTEEENEBNBERLERR
Taiwan is 20%. BREA20%-
24 DIVIDENDS 24 BB
A final dividend of US$7,040,000 that relates to the year ended FRBE_ZE_ZEFE+_A=+—HL
31 December 2020 was declared on 18 May 2021 and was paid FEZARPAKET,040,000€ 7T (ZEZ
in June 2021 (2020: US$3,259,000). T 3,259,000 ERZE—FH
B+NANBERENR_ZE-_—FAFU
AN
The interim dividends paid in 2021 was US$4,152,000 (0.272 RZIEZ—FZTHNPREREA
US cents per share) (2020: US$2,947,000 (0.194 US cents 4,152,000%7¢ (BR0.272% ) (Z2Z
per share)). A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 T 12,947,000E 7T (FPR0.194%=1l)) ©
December 2021 of 0.162 US cents per share, amounting to a RREERRBEAE LR E UHALE
total dividend of US$2,466,000, is to be proposed for approval HBEE_T-_—F+"A=+—HL*HE
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated ENRIEREAER0.162EM KEAR
financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable. RA3E2,466,000E T 2 SR A MBEHR K
4 R PR FE AT AR B o
2021 2020
—EB_—F ZECTE
Us$’000 Us$’000
FET FET
Interim dividend paid of 0.272 US cents TN FEHKREER
(2020: 0.194 US cents) Ei@Ag0.272%A
per ordinary share (ZEBEFF:
0.194%Al) 4,152 2,947
Proposed final dividend of 0.162 US cents  #IRKREARE SR ZER
(2020: 0.462 US cents) 0.1623=1l
per ordinary share TECEE
0.462%All) 2,466 7,040
6,618 9,987
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25 EARNINGS PER SHARE 25 SkEF
(a) Basic (a) E=
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the ERERBFEAQEEE AEWSG
profit attributable to owners of the Company by the wHARUFEABETEERME
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue THHEE-

during the year.

2021 2020
% —ZITHF
Us$’000 Us$'000
FE7T FET
Profit attributable to owners of the KA R A ER
Company (US$'000) (F%1) 11,014 16,650
Weighted average number BETEERME
of ordinary shares in issue THH (TR
(thousands) 1,522,742 1,522,742
Basic earnings per share (US cents BREAEN (EREWL
per share) 0.72 1.09
(b) Diluted (b) &8
Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per BE_S T —FRIZZZEE+C
share as there are no dilutive instruments for the years B=+—HLEEE BRI E®E
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. TE HESRSBIRTESKRESR
BF|HEE -
26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 26 EERMAX (BEEFHM)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
2021 2020
B % TECEF
Us$’000 Us$'000
F=E=7T FEmT
Wages, basic salaries and allowances TE - Ef KRR 37,062 32,290
Bonus TEAL 1,634 2,311
Pension costs BIRE A
— defined contribution plans —EREMH RS 3,062 2,944
Other employee benefits Hing S @7 3,626 3,139
45,384 40,684
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27

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

As stipulated by the labour laws in Vietnam, the Group
operates defined benefit pension plans for its employees in
Vietnam employed on or before 31 December 2008. The
provision is determined based on the employees’ years of
services as at 31 December 2008 and their average monthly

27

BHRENEE

REERESHEERE FEESERZ
TZNE+ BT+ —HIUAEARAN
BrEERMUEEEMNEREHE -ZF
BREUEER-_TTNF+R=1—
BZRHFFHRRERE BBRINER

salary for the six-month period prior to the last service day. AR T A R1EH -
2021 2020
% —EIEE
Uss$’000 Us$'000
FET FERT
As at 1 January w—B—H 1,460 1,414
Current service cost BVERAR 75 B =2 125 141
Payments g (80) (95)
As at 31 December R+ZBA=+—H 1,505 1,460
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows: FiEAMNEZERHERIZNOT
2021 2020
—ET—F —EEE
Discount rate IR 9% 9%
Salary growth rate FrEEXR 4.5% - 6.9% 45% - 6.9%
Expected years of service remaining TEHA I BR AR 75 2R IR 14-16 yearsE 15-17 yearsfE

Pursuant to the Law on Social Insurance in Vietnam effective
from 1 January 2009, the Group is required to contribute to
a state-sponsored employees’ social insurance scheme for its
employees in Vietnam. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due.

REH_ETNF-B—HEENZH
EHEREE AERAARHEUERES
MERXREEZEESLEREEEFHH
e REHZEMME  FEEBEAM
AREE - ZEERN AL REDS
BERHMHAX-
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 ESEMRER (FEQAEGEM (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) $3831% A8 (HBEEEH
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE mER) KA (58622GE) REA L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRARAE 2K E)
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)

REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES)
(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EEESHRITHAEZME
The remuneration of every director and the chief BEERERITHRABEZFHNET!
executive is set out below: wmF
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BE-_E-_—H+Z“HA=+—HL
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits  contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind aretirement o its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Noteb)  benefit scheme undertakings Total
RESRE
EREAFY
Exm HEBARER
FE RERRNER RINETE HEMBBEAR
Name of Director Bsfa k3 (H3ta) R4 (G Mt ERZzRftHE &t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TE7 T£7 T£7 T£7 TE£7 TER T£7
Executive Director BES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung BEEEE 1 343 257 17 - - 618
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ) #M#%4 (Hzkc) - 49 258 17 - - 769
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 218 180 17 - - 415
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou kL - 181 180 17 - - 378
Non-executive Director FaiTES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng ki - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung ERREYE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HERESE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray BREEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
M. Ko, Jim-Chen fgwEs 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong BHESEE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total EE 12 1,236 875 180 - - 2,303
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28 EXEFENRER (FAATGEMN (B
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF 622%) 38315 - AT WEEEHN
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE HEE) R (5622GE) RE#H L
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF HRAREZHE) (@)

INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERSHRITHAEZME B)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020: BE_ZZEF+"A=+—H1t
FE:
Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
with the
management of
Allowances Employer's the affairs of
and benefits contribution to the Company
Salary Discretionary in kind a retirement or its subsidiary
Fees (Note a) bonuses (Note b) benefit scheme undertakings Total
HREFRE
EEAATY
BiXm EWBAIEH
FiF3 ERRRER BIREFGE HEMRBEAR
Name of Director e k3 (MizEa) RETA (Fi3kb) et RBRzEMHE B
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us§'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
TEn TEn Tn T&n R T TEn
Executive Director BES
Mr. Yang, Tou-Hsiung RRERLE 1 343 499 16 - - 859
Mr. Yang, Cheng BERE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang (Note ¢) #3335 (Wzkc) - 382 484 16 - - 882
Mr. Yang, Chen-Wen BRXEE - 216 349 16 - - 581
Mr. Yang, Kun-Chou BERE - 181 349 16 - - 546
Non-executive Director FaiES
Mr. Chou, Szu-Cheng BHREE - - - 16 - - 16
Mr. Huang, Ching-Jung REHLE 1 - - 16 - - 17
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE
Director
Mr. Chao, Pei-Hong HEREE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Chen, Joen-Ray HRmEE 2 - - 16 - - 18
Mr. Ko, Jim-Chen AfREE 3 - - 16 - - 19
Mr. Huang Chung Fong sk 1 - - 16 - - 17
Total aE 10 1122 1,681 176 - - 2,989
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

EFXENRED (FREQEEH (B

6225) $3831% - A8 HEESRT
mEH) AP (55622GE) REE L
HRAREZIRE) (&)

(A) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (A) EERSHRITHAEZME @)
(continued)
Aggregate other emoluments paid to
Aggregate emoluments paid to or or receivable by directors in respect of
receivable by directors in respect of their other services in connection with
their services as directors, whether of the management of the affairs of
the Company or its subsidiary undertakings the Company or its subsidiary undertakings Total Total
ESREREEZRE EERERFATR
(FRAHTADNAEMBARNZES) HiB AR EBARMMN
BEXAHERZAME HttRHEEET NRE Rz A B &85 CE At
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
- bt -3 —E-EE “E--fF ZERIEE b3 ZRIEE
US$°000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$’000 US$'000
FERT FER TERT FER FET FET
192 186 2,11 2,803 2,303 2,989
Note: P 5E
(a)  Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid (@) XZNF—REZFNH=BEBAM

or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiary undertakings.

(b) Allowances and benefits in kind include meeting
attendance allowance.

(c) Mr. Yang, Kun-Hsiang is also the CEO of the Company, no

separate disclosure in respect of the remuneration of the
CEO has been made.
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(B) Directors’ retirement benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no other
retirement benefits were paid to directors in respect of
their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2020: same).

(C) Directors’ termination benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no
termination benefits were paid to directors (2020: same).

(D) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no
consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: same).

(E) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings in favor of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with directors (2020: same).

(F) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 32, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2020: same).

EFENRERD (FREQEEH (B
6225) $3831% - A8 WEESF
mE R Rl (35622GE) RE#E L
HHRAURE ZIKE) (B)

(B) EFERKEF
BE_Z-_—F+”“A=+—H1t
FEE O UERAETAHEEETELR
BT EM B A NEEAIRENR
B AEHMEBRARER (TS F
HEE) °

() EFZ&IEERN
BE_Z-_—F+"HA=+—H1t
FE UIEASFEFSZHLILEER (2
TTEF AR o

(D) FRMHEZRRFMMAE=HIRMEHN
KE
HE_ZT—F+Z“HA=+—HL
FE IEMERESREMEE
ZHRERECEZZEFE MR °

() ARUEER SZREEFEHINE
ANEBERZESESNEMESES
SHEANER EBRREMRS
=g
HE-_F-_—F+°"HA=+—H1t
FEE - IENESE SZEERE
HREAERERZEESENERE
ERATHZAFHNER EEX
REMRZ (ZEZZ4F  ER) °

(F) BEERRZ RHHAEGHPHEKR
i
FRMSEE32PRIREEE SN M FER
KA FEREMERL > AR IHE
SURAEREFERMAQRTE
FEENRERERERERNER
BRRG ZHHEN (ZETZFT
F R -
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28 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 28
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS)
REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING
RULES) (continued)

(G) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included four (2020: four)
executive directors; their emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one (2020: one) individual during the year is as

EFXENRED (FREQEEH (B
6225) $3831% - A8 HEESRT
mEH) 6 (55622GE) RE#E L
HRAREZIRE) (&)

(6) ERmEEMEAL
FEBFFENELERNEAL
BEN® (ZTE2FE  O4A) §1T
EF HEIM=ER EXZOR
PR RFERRBMFT—5 (2
TTRF I —%) ALZFHMINT

follows:
2021 2020
B % ZRITE
UsS$’000 us$'000
F=x FE7T
Wages, basic salaries and TE - EF R
allowances 151 143
Bonus TE4T 48 44
Pension costs — defined BIKE A
contribution plans —EREMETRETE - 3
199 190

The emoluments of the remaining individual fell within
the following band:

BRIALTZMEENUTHEE :

Number of individuals

A¥
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEIEHF
UsS$180,001 to 180,001t E
US$205,000 205,000% 7T 1 1
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29

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 RERERMEE
CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations EBEEZRS
2021 2020
—T——%& —ECRE
Note Us$'000 Us$'000
ihE=d FE7T FEr
Profit before income tax PRPT1S 8 Al E A 15,014 22,017
Adjustments for: MU TIEEFE
— Finance income IR T ON (569) (728)
— Finance costs - 336 473
— Share of post-tax loss of — L — R E
an associate RERRE
K518 201 1,117
— Write-off of inventories —MEES 16 3
— Reversal of impairment —ERIEFEERE
of inventories (113) (50)
— Depreciation of —-ME - -BEXK
property, plant and RBITE
equipment 6 17.679 18,048
- Reversal of impairment —FEULE R AR
loss of trade AR
receivables 13 (39) (126)
— Amortisation of — BB RS
intangible assets 8 127 114
- Amortisation of right- —ERAREE#E
of-use assets 7 405 280
— Impairment of property, —-ME -BEXK
plant and equipment RERE 6 - 786
— (Gain)/loss on disposal —HEME -BE
of property, plant and Rtz W)
equipment /518 20 (47) 37
- Realised fair value gain —EBMIRITER
on structured bank ZBEIR
deposits NFEEWE (145) (155)
— Unrealised fair value —EBMERITER
gain on structured ZAREIR
bank deposits ASSEN & (6) (18)
— Impairment of goodwill —BERE 8 - 3,107
32,859 44,905
Change in working capital EEEEH
(excluding the effects of (RetizEalRBESE
exchange differences on ZERERTE)
consolidation)
— Inventories —=78 (9.886) 4,210
— Trade receivables, —FEWE F AR~
prepayments and FERIE &
other receivables Hfth FE UK RIE (1,948) 6,699
— Trade payables, accruals —ENEZERM
and other payables FEstER &
HAthFE T RRIR 12,233 (5,866)
- Net changes in —HEEMEAT
balances with related SERZ EE)
companies R (1.412) 89
Cash generated from EBEEZRE
operations 31,846 50,037
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29 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29 FERMEFMERME (B)
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(a) Cash generated from operations (continued) (a) EBELEZRE @
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds EGEeRERERAN HEWE
from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: B REEZIERIBEE .
2021 2020
B ZEITHF
Us$'000 Us$'000
F=73 FExT
Net book amount (Note 6) IREEE (I5E6) 30 45
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWME BEAZBZ
plant and equipment (Note 20) W, (B518)
(MF5£20) 47 (37)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVME BERRBZ

plant and equipment FR1SFRIE 77 8
(b) Net cash/(debt) reconciliation (b) IE (EF) FEZHEK
This section sets out an analysis of net cash/(debt) and FEHINESENNHEEB RS
the movements in net cash/(debt) for each of the periods (E%) FEIMKEE (EH)
presented. BREEE o
Net cash/(debt) RE (B P
2021 2020
—E—F TEIERF
Us$’000 Us$’000
TE7 FET
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEZEY 66,136 42,359
Bank borrowings — repayable within ~ $R{TfEE - —EREE
one year (31,661) (32,373)
Bank borrowings — repayable after RITEE-N—FRER
one year (8.647) (13,986)
Lease liabilities — current portion HESE-BHITS (369) (199)
Lease liabilities — non-current portion & & & —JEENHASR (2,650) (2,818)
Net cash/(debt) Re/ (EH) FHE 22,809 (7,017)
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 66,136 42,359
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BHRE-BEFE (11,013) (9,633)
Gross debt — variable interest rates B MRE— T EA X (32.314) (39,743)
Net cash/(debt) Re/ (B F58 22,809 (7,017)
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29 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 29

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

Net cash/(debt) reconciliation (continued)

FARTRERWEE (@)

(b) RE (EF) FEZHIK ()

Liabilities from
financing activities

RERMBEHZEE
Bank Bank Lease Lease
borrowings borrowings liabilities liabilities
due within due after - current - non-current
1 year 1 year portion portion
R—EREE KR-FE3H8 HEaRE HEER
ZRITBE ZRITEE —BPERE S —FEEDERER S
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
=R FERT =R TEn
Balance as at 1 January 2020 RZZEZZF
—B—H2Z &6 (24,748) (15,376) () (3,016)
Cash (inflows)/outflows B& (RA) /mid (1,824) (4,413) 114 -
Non-cash flow movements: FREF=LE .
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEZEE 2 - - -
Interest expense on lease HEAGENSMYE
liabilities - - (89) -
Other non-cash movement HitFREEH (5,803) 5,803 (113) 198
Balance as at RIEZEE
31 December 2020 +ZB=+—-Hz
iR (32,373) (13,986) (199) (2,818)
Cash outflows/(inflows) BeRd,/ FA) 6,709 (646) 375 -
Non-cash flow movements: FREF=LE .
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ SMEZEE (12) - 5 -
Interest expense on lease HEAGENSMZ
liabilities - - (92)
Other non-cash movement HitERE2E (5,985) 5,985 (458) 168
Balance as at RIEZ—-%
31 December 2021 +ZB=+—-Hz
@& (31,661) (8,647) (369) (2,650)
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30

31

32

COMMITMENTS 30 ik
The Group’s capital expenditure contracted for at the end of REERKRESARETNEREEZE
the reporting period but not yet incurred is as follows: AZHWMTF .
2021 2020
% —E°FTHF
Us$'000 Us$’000
T=E7T FET
Contracted but not provided for [ERIESEEES
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERSEE 2,302 4,442
Investment in an associate (Note 10) R—EBERE 2
®&E (fysE10) 112 112
2,414 4,554
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 HAAaR/
At 31 December 2021, the Company has given guarantees for RIZ2Z—F+ZA=+—H &xRF%A
bank facilities of subsidiaries amounting to US$138,028,000 M8 /A E) 2 80138,028,000% 7T (Z &
(2020: US$131,600,000), of which US$110,258,000 (2020: Z 4 131,600,000 7T) ZIRITREIR
US$91,827,000) has not been utilised. iR > Eh110,258,000&x (ZEZE
£ 191,827,000%7T) EARBEFA ©
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BREALXRS

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Yang Family,
whose members are Messrs. Yang, Tou-Hsiung, Yang, Cheng,
Yang, Yung-Huang, Yang, Kun-Hsiang, Yang, Kun-Chou, Yang,
Yung-Jen, Yang, Chen-Wen, Yang, Wen-Hu, Yang, Tung, Ms.
Yang, Wen-Yin, Ms. Yang, Shu-Hui and Ms. Yang, Shu-Mei.

(@) The table below summarises the related parties and
nature of their relationship with the Group as at 31

December 2021:

Related party

FERRKERSTABRRE ERER
EBEBEAE - BEXRE HBXRERE
BEERE HBEMNEE BRERE
BRXEE -BXMEE - BREE B
XL HEREX L RGREL L -

(a) TEEAEANR _ZET_—F+_A4
=t+—HZEREALREHEELE
ERARMEE -

Relationship with the Group

BARAEAL BASEEZHE
Vedan Enterprise CORP (“Taiwan Vedan”) A substantial shareholder of the Company
KREERMBERAE (REK) TABMEERER

Vedan Biotechnology Corporation (“Vedan Bio")
RAEMREBRAERAS (RAEYRE)
Dacin International Holdings Ltd.
EMERERERAF

Capron Group Limited

Capron Group Limited
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

32 HEALTRE @)

(b) Significant related party transactions, which were carried (b) HEAREFDHEEFBREPETHNE
out in the normal course of the Group’s business, are as AEREEALTRZNOTF :

follows:

2021 2020
¥ CTTH
Note Us$‘000 Us$’000
B 5 FET FEx
Sale of goods to Taiwan Vedan maEKAHESGm (i) 7,761 10,982
Purchase of goods from Taiwan SEKAREER
Vedan (i) 1 5,856
Sale of goods to Vedan Bio M ERIIHE
& (i) 322 12
Technical support fee paid to A& &K AR
Taiwan Vedan TEE (ii) 2,210 2,164
Agency commission income M) & 78 IR £ AR Y
received from Taiwan Vedan REFESWA (if) 2 2

Notes: Mk :

() In the opinion of the directors of the Company, sales to/ () HRATESRA RBEMEBBER
purchases from the related parties were conducted in BEMBATEEZHE BF
the normal course of business in accordance with the MEALTRBAGTREXHER
underlying terms. LT o

(c)

(i) In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
transactions were carried out in the normal course of
business and the fees are charged in accordance with the
terms of underlying agreements.

Key management compensation (o)
The compensation paid or payable to key management,

including all executive directors and senior management,

for employee services is shown below.

iy #ARBPDEFIDR ZEXZHEAH
BEEBBREDET LAREME
RA R R BO IR RR U &

TEEBASME
REERFBEAHAEBCEIEZEEA
E (BEMABATESFASRERE
&) Z NS -

2021 2020
T ZEIEHE
uss$’000 Us$'000
F=E=7T FEmT
Salaries and other short-term FreEcHEMBEHRESRET
employee benefits 3,305 4,161
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 32 BREALRS (@)
(d) Year-end balances with the related parties (d) HEREALZEXRGEH

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had the A B —ER-IEZEE+A

following significant balances with the related parties: =+—H AEREFREAEALTZ

FERZBGUNT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —ERIEF
Note Us$’000 US$'000
B 5% FExT FET
Current: BIEA :
Amount due from Taiwan FEUR & Bk R IE
Vedan (i) 1,442 850
Amount due from Vedan Bio FE U R £ A 3
TIE (i) = 12
Amount due to Taiwan Vedan FEfT & BRI RIE (i) (505) (1,328)
Loan to an associate BT —MHBER[BZ
™M (iif) 120 122
Amount due from an associate E— R E AT
I8 (iv) 3 10
Amount due to Capron Group &1 Capron Group
Limited Limited 2 F I8 (v) (12) (30)

Notes: Pk :

(i) All balances with Taiwan Vedan are unsecured, interest- (i) BEENRAZFEEREAEIR
free and have no fixed terms of payment. R EREETER-

(i) The balance with Vedan Bio is unsecured, interest-free and (i) HEFEYR S &GRS EIR
has no fixed terms of payment. R EREETER-

(iiiy  The loan to an associate is unsecured, bears interest at (i) HBF—EHEAT 2ERAEIR
4.5% (2020: 4%) per annum, denominated in US$ and A BEFEKLIS) (ZBEZE .
repayable on demand with three-day notice. 4%) st RN UETEE WER=

HEMEBREREER

(iv)  The balance represents interest receivable from an (ivy #HBiEERERK—BEHEL3IZF
associate. Bo

(v)  The balance with Capron Group Limited was unsecured, (v)  ElCapron Group LimitedZ &5 &k 7%
interest-free, denominated in US$ and repayable within IR - RE UETFAELER
one year. —FEREE.
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 FATIEEEERKREEEH
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company TATEERMRAR

As at 31 December

w+=ZHB=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—f “EITHF
Note Us$‘000 Us$’000
B3 5E FEm FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZEE 166,030 166,030
Investment in an associate RHERRZEE 4,702 4,903
Loan to a subsidiary BFWBATIZER 125 500
Total non-current assets EREBEEMLE 170,857 171,433
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W B /&8 A Bl R 1B 50,987 70,070
Amount due from a related party FEWBRIEANLRIE 25 34
Amount due from an associate FE YR B & A Bl RN IE 3 10
Loan to an associate BTHEANTZER 120 122
Loan to a subsidiary BTMBARZER 75 -
Prepayments and other receivables FEAT R IE R H AR IR
1B 126 655
Short-term bank deposits FEHAIRITIERR - 2,929
Cash and cash equivalents REeERREZEEY 5,014 3,716
Total current assets MEEEEE 56,350 77,536
Total assets BERE 227,207 248,969
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of ViN/NETEZE= N
the Company & 15 1 5
Share capital &N 15,228 15,228
Reserves Ei] (Note(a))
(MF5E(a)) 207,576 227,035
Total equity HEmAREE 222,804 242,263
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 FZREBEEEBERREEES (B

THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued)

ERREEARR (B)

As at 31 December

w+=ZHB=+—H
2021 2020
—E—& _T_=EF
Note Us$000 Us$’000
B 5 FEx FET
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities mEaE
Accruals and other payables FEstER K
HAth fE 4 FRIE 2,457 3,270
Bank borrowings RITBE 1,436 2,105
Current income tax liabilities BNEAPRIS IR AR 5 3
Amount due to a related party FESBRIEANLRIE 505 1,328
Total current liabilities it B=R gk 4,403 6,706
Total equity and liabilities EakaEEE 227,207 248,969

ARABEERBRXREEEZTEN %
__H=ZBZ+HBHIATIAL
REREZ-

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on 22 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf.

Yang, Tou-Hsiung Yang, Kun-Hsiang

Vo BEIE ke
Director Director
EZE o

208 Vedan International (Holdings) Limited Bk FHEI B (ZRR) BIRAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR MR M

33

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 33 HZRAFDNEERBRRRFEBEE (B
THE COMPANY (continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TATEERRR (B
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company MizE(a) A A B EEHE S EY
Share
premium and Exchange Retained
other reserve reserve earnings Total
B iEE R
H & ER#E REEA 4z
Us$'000 Us$’000 Us$'o00 Us$'000
FE73 FE5 FE FE7
At 1 January 2020 A _E_EF—HF—H 194,098 (12) 18,293 212,379
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year NEERF - - 20,686 20,686
Other comprehensive income HfthZ2EUKA
Currency translation difference  FEERZZE - 176 - 176
Total comprehensive income  Z2EUTALEZE - 176 20,686 20,862
Dividends paid BfIKRE - - (6,206) (6,206)
At 31 December 2020 RZEBIEE
+ZA=+—H 194,098 164 32,773 227,035
At 1 January 2021 A _E-_—F—F—H 194,098 164 32,773 227,035
Comprehensive loss 2HEBE
Loss for the year KEEEE - - (8,327) (8,327)
Other comprehensive income Hfth2EIKA
Currency translation difference  [ERZEZE - 60 - 60
Total comprehensive loss 2HEEEE4ELE - 60 (8,327) (8,267)
Dividends paid BKRE - - (11,192) (11,192)
At 31 December 2021 RIZEZ—F
+ZHB=+—8H 194,098 224 13,254 207,576
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